
























































































































































ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS, CITY OF CHICAGQO, CITY HALL, ROOM %05

APPLICANT: RG JG Hawwa CAL NO.: 569-18-Z
" \PPEARANCE FOR: Thomas Moore MINUTES OF MEETING:
October 19, 2018
APPEARANCE AGAINST: None
PREMISES AFFECTED: 1534 N. Dearborn Parkway

NATURE OF REQUEST: Application for a variation to reduce the rear setback from the required 41.85' to
zero, north setback from 2' to 1.33', south setback from 2' to 0.16', combined side setback from 4.832'to 0.16' for a
proposed rooftop elevator penthouse with roof deck, rear three, four story additions an enclosed breezeway with
roof deck for the existing single family residence.

ACTION OF BOARD-
VARIATION GRANTED THE VOTE
" i AFFIRMATIVE NEGATIVE ABSENT
NE@ EIVED BLAKE SERCYE b
SHAINA DOAR X
NO\‘! -ﬁ. 9 ZO}U SOL FLORES b'e
CITY OF CHICAGD SAM TOIA X
FOMNING BOARD OF APPEALS AMANDA WILLIAMS X
THE RESOLUTION:

)
WHEREAS, a public hearing was held on this application by the Zoning Board of Appeals at its regular meeting held
on October 19, 2018 after due notice thereof as provided under Section 17-13-0107B and by publication in the Chicago Sun-
Times on October 5, 2018; and

WHEREAS, the Zoning Board of Appeals, having reviewed the proposed finding of fact and having fully heard the
testimony and arguments of the parties and being fully advised in the premises, hereby finds the following; the applicant
shall be permitted to reduce the rear setback to zero, north setback to 1.33', south setback to 0.16', combined side setback
to 0.16' for a proposed rooftop elevator penthouse with roof deck, rear three, four story additions an enclosed breezeway with
roof deck for the existing single family residence; the Board finds 1) strict compliance with the regulations and standards of
this Zoning Ordinance would create practical difficulties or particular hardships for the subject property; 2) the requested
variation is consistent with the stated purpose and intent of this Zoning Ordinance; 3) the property in question cannot yield a
reasonable return if permitted to be used only in accordance with the standards of this Zoning Ordinance; 4) the practical
difficulties or particular hardships are due to unique circumstances and are not generally applicable to other similarly situated
property; and 5) the variation, if granted will not alter the essential character of the neighborhood; it is therefore

RESOLVED, that the Zoning Board of Appeals, by virtue of the authority conferred upon it, does hereby make a
variation in the application of the district regulations of the zoning ordinance and that the aforesaid variation request be and it

hereby is granted subject to the following condition(s):

That ali applicable ordinances of the City of Chicégo shall be complied with before a permit is issued.

) Page 53 of 67 %"?Wﬁﬁl} r;’i"@ SUBSTANGE
. /V e

EHAIRSAN




ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS, CITY OF CHICAGO, CITY HALL, ROOM 905

APPLICANT: - Qlazier Project, LLC - Bridgeport CAL NO.: 570-18-S
" "PPEARANCE FOR: Bridget O’Keefe MINUTES OF MEETING:
October 19, 2018
APPEARANCE AGAINST: None
PREMISES AFFECTED: 3100-3110 S. Halsted Street

NATURE OF REQUEST: Application for a special use to establish a one-lane drive through to serve a proposed
restavrant,

ACTION OF BOARD-
Continued to November 16, 2018 at 2:00 p.m.
THE VOTE
] AFEIRMATIVE MEGATIVE ABSENT

RECEWED BLAKE SERCYE X

' SHAINA DOAR X

NOV 1 § 2018 SOL FLORES X

CITY OF CHICAGO SAM TOIA X

PONING BOARD OF APPEALS AMANDA WILLIAMS X

Page 54 of 67



ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS, CITY OF CHICAGQO, CITY HALL, ROOM 905

APPLICANT: ‘ Glazier Project, LLC - Bridgeport CAL NO.: 571-18-S
" "PPEARANCE FOR: Bridget O’Keefe MINUTES OF MEETING:
October 19, 2018
APPEARANCE AGAINST: None
PREMISES AFFECTED: 3102 S. Halsted Street

NATURE OF REQUEST: Application for a variation to reduce the 18 linear feet of landscape setback along
31st Street from the required 7' to 3'-8".

ACTION OF BOARD-
Continued to November 16, 2018 at 2:00 p.m.
THE VOTE
H E C E HV% w AFFIRMATIVE NEGATIVE ABSENT
BLAKE SERCYE X
NOY 192018 SHAINA DOAR X
SOL FLORES X
CITY OF CHIGAGU
ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS SAMTOIA X
AMANDA WILLIAMS X

APPROVED AS XD SUBST.

= v
Page 55 of 67 4 CRAIRMAN



ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS, CITY OF CHICAGO, CITY HALL, ROOM 905

APPLICANT: Me Donald’s USA, LLC CAL NO.: 572-18-Z

" PPEARANCE FOR: Brandon Calvert MINUTES OF MEETING:
October 19, 2018

APPEARANCE AGAINST: None

PREMISES AFFECTED: 1454 W, 47" Street

NATURE OF REQUEST: Application for a variation to increase the 4,000 square feet maximum gross floor
area of a commercial establishment by no more than 10% for a total of 4,400 square feet for a proposed one story

addition to an existing restaurant.

ACTION OF BOARD-
VARIATION GRANTED THE VOTE
§ AFFIRMATIVE NEGATEVE ABSENT
RE@ EEVED BLAKE SERCYE : RECUSED
) , SHAINA DOAR X

N(]V ]{ 9 2018 SOL FLORES

CITY OF CHICAGO SAM TOIA X
THE RESOLUTION:

) WHEREAS, a public hearing was held on this application by the Zoning Board of Appeals at its regular meeting held
on October 19, 2018 after due notice thereof as provided under Section 17-13-0107B and by publication in the Chicago Sun-

Times on October 5, 2018; and

WHEREAS, the Zoning Board of Appeals, having reviewed the proposed finding of fact and having fully heard the
testimony and arguments of the parties and being fully advised in the premises, hereby finds the following; the applicant
shall be permitted to increase the 4,000 square feet maximum gross floor area of a commercial establishment by no more
than 10% for a total of 4,400 square feet for a proposed one story addition to an existing restaurant; a special use was also
granted to the subject property in Cal. No. 263-18-S; the Board finds 1) strict compliance with the regulations and standards
of this Zoning Ordinance would create practical difficulties or particular hardships for the subject property; 2) the requested
variation is consistent with the stated purpose and intent of this Zoning Ordinance; 3) the property in question cannot yield a
reasonable return if permitted to be used only in accordance with the standards of this Zoning Ordinance; 4) the practical
difficulties or particular hardships are due to unique circumstances and are not generally applicable to other similarly situated
property; and 5) the variation, if granted will not alter the essential character of the neighborhood; it is therefore

RESOLVED, that the Zoning Board of Appeals, by virtue of the authority conferred upon it, does hereby make a
variation in the application of the district regulations of the zoning ordinance and that the aforesaid variation request be and it

hereby is granted subject to the following condition(s):

That all applicable ordinances of the City of Chicago shall be complied with before a permit is issued.

APPROVED A5 TO SUBSTANGE
Page 40 of 67 >

= / CHAIRMAN




ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS, CITY OF CHICAGO, CITY HALL, ROOM 995

APPLICANT: Jenica Edmund CAL NO.: 573-18-S
‘\I\JPPEARANCE FOR: Thomas Moore MINUTES OF MEETING:
October 19, 2018
APPEARANCE AGAINST: None
PREMISES AFFECTED: 1650 W. Ogden Avenue

NATURE OF REQUEST: Application for a special use to establish a hair/ nail salon.

ACTION OF BOARD-
APPLICATION APPROVED
THE VOTE
REC EHVED AFFIRMATIVE NEGATIVE ABSENT
BLAKE SERCYE X
NOV 1 920,8 SHAINA DOAR X
SOL FLORES X
GITY OF CHCAGO SAM TOIA X
FONING BOARD OF APPEALS
AMANDA WILLIAMS X

THE RESOLUTION:

WHEREAS, a public hearing was held on this application by the Zoning Board of Appeals at its regular meeting held
on October 19, 2018 after due notice thereof as provided under Section 17-13-0107B and by publication in the Chicago Sun-

mes on October 5, 2018; and

WHEREAS, the Zoning Board of Appeals, having reviewed the proposed finding of fact and having fully heard the
testimony and arguments of the parties and being fully advised in the premises, hereby finds the following; the applicant
shall be permitted to establish a hair / nail salon; expert testimony was offered that the use would not have a negative impact
on the surrounding community and is in character with the neighborhood; further expert testimony was offered that the use
complies with all of the criteria as set forth by the code for the granting of a special use at the subject site; the Board finds the
use complies with all applicable standards of this Zoning Ordinance; is in the interest of the public convenience and will not
have a significant adverse impact on the general welfare of neighborhood or community; is compatible with the character of
the surrounding area in terms of site planning and building scale and project design; is compatible with the character of the
surrounding area in terms of operating characteristics, such as hours of operation, outdoor lighting, noise, and traffic
generation; and is designed to promote pedestrian safety and comfort; it is therefore

RESOLVED, that the aforesaid special use réquest be and it hereby is approved and the Zoning Administrator is
authorized to permit said special use subject to the following condition(s): provided the special use is issued solely to the

applicant, Jenica Edmund.

That all applicable ordinances of the City of Chicago shall be complied with before a permit is issued.

APPROVED AS TO SBBSTANBE

Page 56 of 67 = <" CHAIRMAN




ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS, CITY OF CHICAGO, CITY HALL, ROOM 965

APPLICANT: , McDonald’s USA, LLC CAL NO.: 263-18-S
" “PPEARANCE FOR: Brandon Calvert MINUTES OF MEETING:
October 19, 2018
APPEARANCE AGAINST: None
PREMISES AFFECTED: 1454 W. 47" Street

NATURE OF REQUEST: Application for a special use to establish a single* lane drive-through to serve an
existing fast food restaurant.

ACTION OF BOARD-
APPLICATION APPROVED
THE VOTE
RE@ E EVED AFFIRMATIVE ___ WEOATIVE ___ ABSENT
BLAKE SERCYE RECUSED
NOV 1 92018 SHAINA DOAR X
SOL FLORES X
zommﬁégcscfﬁggﬁfpgsms SAMTOIA X
AMANDA WILLIAMS X
THE RESOLUTION:

WHEREAS, a public hearing was held on this application by the Zoning Board of Appeals at its regular meeting held
October 19, 2018 after due notice thereof as provided under Section 17-13-0107B and by publication in the Chicago Sun-

.1mes on October 5, 2018; and

WHEREAS, the Zoning Board of Appeals, having reviewed the proposed finding of fact and having fully heard the
testimony and arguments of the parties and being fully advised in the premises, hereby finds the following; the applicant
shall be permitted to establish a single* lane drive-through to serve an existing fast food restaurant; expert testimony was
offered that the use would not have a2 negative impact on the surrounding community and is in character with the
neighborhood; further expert testimony was offered that the use complies with all of the criteria as set forth by the code for
the granting of a special use at the subject site; the Board finds the use complies with all applicable standards of this Zoning
Ordinance; is in the interest of the public convenience and will not have a significant adverse impact on the general welfare
of neighborhood or community; is compatible with the character of the surrounding area in terms of site planning and
building scale and project design; is compatible with the character of the surrounding area in terms of operating
characteristics, such as hours of operation, outdoor lighting, noise, and traffic generation; and is designed to promote

pedestrian safety and comfort; it is therefore

RESOLVED, that the aforesaid special use request be and it hereby is approved and the Zoning Administrator is
authorized to permit said special use subject to the following condition(s): provided the development is consistent with the
design and layout of the site and landscape plans dated October 18, 2018, prepared by Watermark Engineering Resources,

Litd.

That all applicable ordinances of the City of Chicago shall be complied with before a permit is issued.
*Amended at Hearing
APPROYED. A8 TH SUBSTANGE

Page 41 of 67

" CHAIRMAN



LATINLINGY DRI CRANAT VPR Ol 0l ndy -4 B AL S RERAROARNRSy AR 4 LLORA iy IMNRIRFLYA FAFJT

APPLICANT: McDonald’s USA, LLC CAL NO.: 312-18-S
. APPEARANCE FOR: Tim Hinchman MINUTES OF MEETING:
October 19, 2018
APPEARANCE AGAINST: None
PREMISES AFFECTED: 207 E. 35" Street

NATURE OF REQUEST: Application for a special use to establish a dual lane drive-through to serve an
existing fast food restaurant.

ACTION OF BOARD-
Continued to December 21, 2018 at 9:00 a.m.
THE VOTE
= = AFFIRMATIVE NEGATIVE ABSENT
RECEWED BLAKE SERCYE X
, SHAINA DOAR X
1 @908
NOV 1 § 2018 SOL FLORES X
©ITY OF CHICAGU SAM TOIA X
FONING BOARD OF APFEALY AMANDA WILLIAMS X

APPROVED AS TO SUBSTANCE
-

Page 57 of 67 o L7 CRAIRWEY



ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS, CITY OF CHICAGO, CITY HALL, ROOM %05

APPLICANT: Jester Properties, LLC CAL NO.: 331-18-8§
" PPEARANCE FOR: Barry Ash MINUTES OF MEETING:
October 19, 2018
APPEARANCE AGAINST: None
PREMISES AFFECTED: 1709 N. Kedzie Avenue

NATURE OF REQUEST:': Application for a special use to establish residential use below the second floor for a
proposed four-story, three dwelling unit building with a detached three car garage.

ACTION OF BOARD-
Continued to November 16, 2018 at 2:00 p.m.
THE VOTE
% ﬁ@ E EVE [‘3 AFFIRMATIVE NEGATIVE ABSENT
BLAKE SERCYE X
NOV 1 82018 SHAINA DOAR X
- SOL FLORES X
CITY OF CHICAGD
FOMIMG BOARD OF APPEALS SAM TOIA X
AMANDA WILLIAMS X

APEROVED AS T0_SupsTANG

e s
Page 58 of 67 " CHAIRMAN




LATINUNG DARJARLD U AVTLALAS, 1 X U LHNTUAWLU, UL ¥ HALLy RUUNL TUO

APPLICANT: William J. Deakin Trust and Lis M. Diehlmann Trust - CAL NO.: 404-18-7
---ﬁPPEARANCE FOR: Nicholas Ftikas MINUTES OF MEETING:
j October 19, 2018
APPEARANCE AGAINST: None
PREMISES AFFECTED: 1848 N. Lincoln Avenue

NATURE OF REQUEST: Application for a variation to reduce the front feature setback from the required 20’
to 9.87', front setback from 11.22' to 9.87', north and south setback from 2' to zero, combined side setback from 5'
to zero and the open space along the north and south end of the lot from 5' to zero on each side for a proposed
attached garage with roof deck, open stairs, roof top stair/ elevator enclosure and roof deck.

ACTION OF BOARD-
Continued to November 16, 2018 at 2:00 p.m.
THE VOTE
. . AFFERMATIVE NEGATIVE ABSENT
RECEIVED BLAKE SERCYE X
SHAINA DOAR X

NOY 19 206

NOY 1 9 2018 o0 FLORES »

CITY OF CHICAGO SAM TOIA X

ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS AMANDA WILLIAMS ¥

APPROVED AS T8 SUBSTANGE

Page 59 of 67 )
age 59 0 {_ ..~ CHAIMMAN



AARFLARLAF AFFOAANES AR 3l R AR AR R 4 WL S ARARALARERS e "l B R OLLISCREASAdy AWLILFIYR FUD

APPLICANT: Unity Parenting and Counseling, Inc. CAL NO.: 428-18-S
.,,.,--%PPEARANCE FOR: Nicholas Ftikas MINUTES OF MEETING:
October 19, 2018
APPEARANCE AGAINST: None
PREMISES AFFECTED: 7955-59 S. Ashland Avenue

NATURE OF REQUEST: Application for a special use to establish a temporary overnight shelter.

ACTION OF BOARD-
Continued to November 16, 2018 at 2:00 p.m,
THE VOTE
' . - ATFEIRMATIVE NEGATIVE ABSENT
RECEIVED BLAKE SERCYE X
_ ‘ SHAINA DOAR X
MOV 1 9 203 SOL FLORES X
CITY OF CHICAGU SAMTOIA X
ZOMING BOARD OF APPEALS AMANDA WILLIAMS X
)
APPROVED AS TO SUBSTAH
Page 60 of 67 <" CHAIRMAN



A FLNVALINRT AR FLORANAS AL Ol 2 0% ddkFs SR L & LA R ANER RN ASy R L R RLLORE Ly ALY FUJ

APPLICANT: The Church of Pentecostal USA Inc. — Greater North Assembly CAL NO.: 484-18-S

APPEARANCE FOR: Paul Kolpak MINUTES OF MEETING:
) October 19, 2018
APPEARANCE AGAINST: None
PREMISES AFFECTED: 5326-30 N. Kedzie Avenue

NATURE OF REQUEST: Application for a special use to establish a religious assembly.

ACTION OF BOARD-
APPLICATION APPROVED
THE VOTE
RE@ EBVE?} AFFIRMATIVE _ NEGATIVE ___ ABSENT
BLAKE SERCYE X
WOY 1820w SHAINA DOAR X
SOL FLORES X
ONNGBONID OF ApPEALS  SAMTOA x
AMANDA WILLIAMS X
THE RESOLUTION:

WHEREAS, a public hearing was held on this application by the Zoning Board of Appeals at its regular meeting held
on October 19, 2018 after due notice thereof as provided under Section 17-13-0107B and by publication in the Chicago Sun-

Times on October 5, 2018; and

WHEREAS, the Zoning Board of Appeals, having reviewed the proposed finding of fact and having fully heard the
testimony and arguments of the parties and being fully advised in the premises, hereby finds the following; the applicant
shall be permitted to establish a religious assembly; expert testimony was offered that the use would not have a negative
impact on the surrounding community and is in character with the neighborhood; further expert testimony was offered that
the use complies with all of the criteria as set forth by the code for the granting of a special use at the subject site; the Board
finds the use complies with all applicable standards of this Zoning Ordinance; is in the interest of the public convenience and
will not have a significant adverse impact on the general welfare of neighborhood or community; is compatible with the
character of the surrounding area in terms of site planning and building scale and project design; is compatible with the
character of the surrounding area in terms of operating characteristics, such as hours of operation, outdoor lighting, noise, and
traffic generation; and is designed to promote pedestrian safety and comfort; it is therefore

RESOLVED, that the aforesaid special use request be and it hereby is approved and the Zoning Administrator is
authorized to permit said special use subject to the following condition(s): provided the development is consistent with the
design and layout of the plans and drawings dated May 31, 2018, prepared by Terra Architects.

That alf applicable ordinances of the City of Chicago shall be complied with before a permit is issued.

APPROVED AS TO SUBSTANGE

Page 61 of 67 g
) 7 i




LATNEN G DUARLD UY ANCEALYD, CLEY UF LIMIUAGCGU, LLHL XY 1AL L, IKUUILYL 790

APPLICANT: The Church of Pentecostal USA Inc. -- Greater North Assembly CAL NO.: 485-18-S

’\‘}’PEARANCE FOR: Paul Kolpak MINUTES OF MEETING:
October 19, 2018
APPEARANCE AGAINST: None
PREMISES AFFECTED: 5315-19 N. Kedzie Avenue

NATURE OF REQUEST: Application for a special use to establish off-site parking for fifteen required parking
spaces to serve the proposed religious assembly located at 5326-30 N. Kedzie Avenue.

ACTION OF BOARD-
APPLICATION APPROVED
THE VOTE
) " \oa AFFIRMATIVE NEGATIVE ARSENT

RE@&W’&@ BLAKE SERCYE X

o SHAINA DOAR X

NOV 1 9 201 SOL FLORES <

CITY OF CHICAGO SAM TOIA X

FONIMNG BOARD OF APPEALS AMANDA WILLIAMS X

THE RESOLUTION:

WHEREAS, a public hearing was held on this application by the Zoning Board of Appeals at its regular meeting held
~n October 19, 2018 after due notice thereof as provided under Section 17-13-0107B and by publication in the Chicago Sun-

hes on October 5,2018; and

WHEREAS, the Zoning Board of Appeals, having reviewed the proposed finding of fact and having fully heard the
testimony and arguments of the parties and being fully advised in the premises, hereby finds the following; the applicant
shall be permitted to establish off-site parking for fifteen required parking spaces to serve the proposed religious assembly
located at 5326-30 N. Kedzie Avenue; expert testimony was offered that the use would not have a negative impact on the
surrounding community and is in character with the neighborhood; further expert testimony was offered that the use complies
with all of the criteria as set forth by the code for the granting of a special use at the subject site; the Board finds the use
complies with all applicable standards of this Zoning Ordinance; is in the interest of the public convenience and will not have
a significant adverse impact on the general welfare of neighborhood or community; is compatible with the character of the
surrounding area in terms of site planning and building scale and project design; is compatible with the character of the
surrounding area in terms of operating characteristics, such as hours of operation, outdoor lighting, noise, and traffic
generation; and is designed to promote pedestrian safety and comfort; it is therefore

RESOLVED, that the aforesaid special use request be and it hereby is approved and the Zoning Administrator is
authorized to permit said special use subject to the following condition(s): provided the development is consistent with the
design and layout of the plans and drawings dated May 31, 2018, prepared by Terra Architects.

That all appticable ordinances of the City of Chicago shall be complied with before a permit is issued.

BSTANCE

APPROVED AS 70

Page 62 of 67

T CHRIRMAR



ZONING BOGARD OF APPEALS, CITY OF CHICAGO, CITY HALL, ROOM 905

APPLICANT: The Church of Pentecostal USA Inc.~Greater North Assembly  CAL NO.: 486-18-Z

 PPEARANCE FOR: Paul Kolpak MINUTES OF MEETING:
October 19, 2018
APPEARANCE AGAINST: None
PREMISES AFFECTED: 5315-19 N. Kedzie Avenue

NATURE OF REQUEST: Application for a variation to establish shared parking for a religious assembly
facility located at 5326-30 N. Kedzie Avenue..

ACTION OF BOARD-
VARIATION GRANTED THE VOTE
AFFIRMATIVE NEGATIVE ABSENT
R BLAKE SERCYE X
ﬁﬁ{, EIVED SHAINA DOAR X
, P SOL FLORES X
NOV 1 826 CATO -
CITY OF CHIGAG AMANDA WILLIAMS X
FONING BOARD OF abPad Y
THE RESOLUTION:

_ WHEREAS, a public hearing was held on this application by the Zoning Board of Appeals at its regular meeting held
JOctober 19, 2018 after due notice thereof as provided under Section 17-13-0107B and by publication in the Chicago Sun-

‘Iimes on October 5, 2018; and

WHEREAS, the Zoning Board of Appeals, having reviewed the proposed finding of fact and having fully heard the
testimony and arguments of the parties and being fully advised in the premises, hereby finds the following; the applicant
shall be permitted to establish shared parking for a religious assembly facility located at 5326-30 N. Kedzie Avenue; the
Board finds 1) strict compliance with the regulations and standards of this Zoning Ordinance would create practical
difficulties or particular hardships for the subject property; 2) the requested variation is consistent with the stated purpose and
intent of this Zoning Ordinance; 3) the property in question cannot yield a reasonable return if permitted to be used only in
accordance with the standards of this Zoning Ordinance; 4) the practical difficulties or particular hardships are due to unique
circumstances and are not generally applicable to other similarly situated property; and 5) the variation, if granted will not

alter the essential character of the neighborhood; it is therefore

RESOLVED, that the Zoning Board of Appeals, by virtue of the authority conferred upon it, does hereby make a
variation in the application of the district regulations of the zoning ordinance and that the aforesaid variation request be and it

hereby is granted subject to the following condition(s):

That all applicable ordinances of the City of Chicago shall be complied with before a permit is issued.

APPROVED AS TG-SUBSTANCE

. Page 63 of 67 -
) LS T onhimeAN




ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS .
CITY OF CHICAGO RECEIVED
City Hall Room go5 Y #p
121 North LaSalle Street ‘Ui:{" % 4 “{8 ﬂﬁ
Chicago, Illinois 60602
. ) CITY OF CHICAGC
TEL: 888
B (312) 7443 ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS
Katherine G. Shannon Living Trust 490-18-Z & 491-18-Z

APPLICANT

2057 N. Howe Street October 19, 2013

PREMISES AFFECTED

ACTION OF BOARD THE VOTE

AFFIRMATIVE NEGATIVE ABSENT

The‘ appllcatlons for the Blake Sercye x] ] ]
variations are approved. Shaina Doar [x] ] [}
Sol Flores [x] L] ]
Sam Toia [x] ] []
Amanda Williams i ] (x]

FINDINGS OF THE ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS
IN THE MATTER OF THE VARIATION APPLICATIONS FOR 2057 N. HOWE
STREET BY THE KATHERINE G. SHANNON LIVING TRUST

L BACKGROUND

The Katherine G. Shannon Living Trust (the “Applicant”™) submitted two variation
applications for 2057 N. Howe Street (the “subject property™). The subject property is
currently zoned RM-4.5 and is improved with an existing two-story row house (the
“home”). The home dates from the late 1890s and is classified as a three-story home
under the Chicago Zoning Ordinance due to the fact that the home’s basement is only 2°
below grade. The Applicant proposed to add a rear second floor addition to the home.
To permit this addition, the Applicant sought variations to: (1} increase the existing floor
arca from 2,408.79 square feet to 3,072.79 square feet; and (2) reduce the rear setback
from the required 20.89° to 13.29° and reduce the north setback from 6.49° to 0° (south

setback to be 0.36).
II. PUBLIC HEARING

A. The Hearing

The ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS held a public hearing on the Applicant’s
variation applications at its regular meeting held on October 19, 2018, after due notice
thereof as provided under Section 17-13-0107-B of the Chicago Zoning Ordinance and
by publication in the Chicago Sun-Times, and as continued without further notice
pursuant to Section 17-13-0108-A of the Chicago Zoning Ordinance. In accordance with

APPROVED AS TO SUBSYANGE

-

. CHAIRMAR



CAL. NOs. 490-18-Z & 491-18-Z
Page 2 of 15

the ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS’ Rules of Procedure, the Applicant had submitted
its proposed Findings of Fact. The Applicant’s trustees Mr. Patrick Shannon and Ms.
Katherine Shannon and its attorney Mr. Mark Kupiec were present. The Applicant’s
architect Mr. Peter Mayer and its MAI certified appraiser Mr. Joseph M. Ryan were also
present. Testifying in opposition to the application was Ms. Patricia Coleman. The
statements and testimony given during the public hearing were given m accordance with
the ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS’ Rules of Procedure.

The Applicant’s attorney Mr, Mark Kupiec stated that prior to the hearing, the
Applicant had — at the alderman’s request - met with the Lincoln Central Association (the
“Association”). He stated that based on comments made by the Association, the
Applicant had revised its plans for the proposed second floor addition. He then submitted
and the ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS received into evidence revised plans for the
Applicant’s proposed second floor addition.

In response to guestions from the ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS, the Applicant’s
architect Mr. Peter Mayer testified that he drew the Applicant’s revised plans and that
said revised plans called for a second floor addition of 167 square feet. He testified that
the Applicant’s previous plans had called for a second floor addition of approximately
230 square feet. He testified the revised plans called for a second floor addition that
would provide a larger rear setback than the rear setback provided in the previous plans.

The ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS stated it would proceed with the hearing with
the revised plans.

The Applicant’s co-trustee Mr. Patrick Shannon testified. He testified that the
Applicant owned the subject property. He testified that the subject property was a short
lot, measuring only 75” deep. He testified that the subject property was also a narrow lot,
measuring only 22° wide. He testified that the subject property was improved with the
home and that he fived in the home with his wife and their two children. He testified that
his children were three and four-and-a-half years old. He testified that the home, as
currently configured, did not provide a suitable bedroom for his children. He testified
that, in consequence, Mr. Mayer had designed a small rear addition that would be added
to the home’s second floor. He testified that he and his wife had their bedroom on the
home’s second floor. He testified that he and his wife preferred to have their children’s
bedroom on the same floor as theirs. He testified that the basement area was not a
suitable bedroom space for the children. He testified that the Applicant purchased the
home in 2010 before he and his wife had their children. He testified that as the children
are getting bigget, their need for a bedroom was a serious matter. He testified that the
home, as currently configured, was not sufficient to the needs of his family. He testified
that despite the subject property’s short lot, the home has a garage: He testified that this
garage makes it difficult to locate an addition on the home. He testified that there is no
alley at the rear of the subject property. He testified that the first three lots off the corner
of Howe Street and Dickens Avenue are all short lots with no access to the alley. He
testified that the rest of the lots on the block going south are longer lots with full alley



CAL. NOs. 490-18-Z & 491-18-Z
Page 3 of 15

access. He testified that this lack of an alley causes the Applicant a problem with respect
to one of the variations.

In response to questions by the ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS, Mr. Kupiec
reminded the ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS that the subject property was a reversed
corner lot." He then reminded the ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS that the subject
property was zoned RM-4.5 and that, generally, property in a RM-4.5 zoning district does
not have a side setback requirement for the side property line that fronts a street. He
stated, however, that when the property is a reversed corner lot, there is, in fact, a side
setback requirement for the side property line that fronts a street.? He stated that in this
particular case, this means that the subject property has a side setback requirement for the
side property line.that fronts Dickens Avenue, despite the home not currently being set
back from Dickens Avenue,

Mr. Shannon then testified that the way the home is configured, there is no rear alley
and the home is adjacent to another building to the east that fronts Dickens Avenue. He
testified that there then is another building that fronts Dickens Avenue and then there is a
north-south alley. He testified that both of the buildings fronting Dickens Avenue have
previously built second-story rear additions similar to the Applicant’s proposed addition.
He testified that the home at 2053 N. Howe, which was a home built on a short lot with
no rear alley, also has a second-story rear addition. He testified that all three of these
buildings had received relief from the ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS for these

second-floor additions.

Mr. Kupiec then submitted and the ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS received into
evidence copies of the ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS’ resolutions regarding these
three properties.

The ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS reminded Mr. Kupiec that the ZONING
BOARD OF APPEALS was not a precedence setting body.

Mr. Shannon then testified that many homes on longer lots in the area also had rear
additions. He testified that the property at 205! N. Howe was a standard City lot but that
the home had a three-story rear addition. He testified that the rear additions are not
uncommon in the area. He testified that this area of Lincoln Park does not generally have
big backyards. He testified that, in consequence, if the Applicant’s request were granted,
it would not alter the essential character of the neighborhood.

Mr. Kupiec then submitted and the ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS accepted into
the record letters written by nearby property owners in support of the Applicant’s
application.

The Applicant’s other co-trustee Ms. Katherine Shannon testified. She testified that
she was married to Mr. Patrick Shannon. She testified that the home, us currently

! As such term is defined in Section 17-17-02148 of the Chicago Zoning Ordinance.
2 See Note 1 of Section 17-2-0309-A of the Chicago Zoning Ordinance.



CAL. NOs. 490-18-Z & 491-18-Z
Page 4 of 15

configured, did not have suitable space for the children. She testified that based on her
conversations with Mr. Mayer, there were no room within the existing home that could
provide a suitable bedroom for her children. She testified that the best solution was
therefore the Applicant’s proposed addition. She testified that she believed the home was

from the 1890s.

Mr. Kupiec stated that although the home was not a Chicago landmark, it was a nice
old building. He stated, however, that one of the problems with older buildings were
their floor plans. He stated that with respect the criteria dealing with unique
circumstances, the home itself is a unique circumstance.

Mr. Mayer testified in support of the Applicant’s applications. He testified that he
had built the model of the proposed project currently before the ZONING BOARD OF
APPEALS. He then testified that the subject property is a corner lot. He testified that the
subject property is currently improved with the home, which has a basement and two
stories in the front but only one story in the back. He testified that the basement
contained a garage. He testified that the Applicant proposed to expand the second floor
to the east by 8.5” to add a bedroom to the existing building. He testified that the
proposed addition would be 167 square feet. He testified that the garage is at grade
because the basement is only 2” below grade. He testified that the basement therefore
constitutes an additional hardship in this matter because the basement currently counts
against the subject property’s Floor Area Ratio (“FAR™).> He testified that any new
building would have its basement more than half below grade so said basement would not
count against the subject property’s FAR. He then showed the ZONING BOARD OF
- APPEALS the proposed addition on the model. He testified that said addition would not

block any sunlight because the sun would rise in the east and set in the west. He testified
that the Applicant had included in its information to the ZONING BOARD OF
APPEALS a number of photographs of the model taken with the sun at various times of
the day and various times of the year to show that not only would the proposed addition
not diminish light to the buildings to the south but also would increase the sunlight by
having a reflective wall. He testified that the packet also include comparison
photographs, showing the home with and without the proposed addition.

The ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS then formally accepted into evidence the
Applicant’s packet as well as the Applicant’s model.

Mr. Mayer testified that on June 21 at 11:00 AM, one could say that the proposed
addition provided more reflective light to the south neighbor’s yard than without the
proposed addition. He testified that this reflective light would be achieved by
whitewashed brick. He testified then in his opinion, strict compliance with the
regulations of the Chicago Zoning Ordinance would create practical difficulties. He
testified that the Applicant’s requested variations are consistent with the stated purpose
and intent of the Chicago Zoning Ordinance. He testified that in designing the proposed
addition, the practical difficulties he experienced were due to unique circumstances.

3 See 17-17-305-A of the Chicago Zoning Ordinance.



CAL. NOs. 490-18-Z & 491-18-Z
Page 5 of 15

With respect to these unique circumstances, he then testified the subject property is a
short lot of only 75° and a narrow lot of only 22° wide. He testified that the home is over
100 years old and that the basement of said house was more than haif above grade,
meaning said basement counted against the subject property’s FAR. He testified that
there is also a garage on the subject property which presents an additional difficulty of
trying to locate an addition on the subject property. He testified that there is no alley at
the rear of the subject property. He testified that though the subject property is currently
zoned RM-4.5, his research shows that the subject property was once zoned R-5. He
testified that previously the R-5 zoning district allowed for a 2.2 FAR and if the subject
property still had a 2.2 FAR, the Applicant would not need a variation to increase the
FAR for the proposed addition. He testified that the denial from the Zoning
Administrator reflects that the FAR fifty (50) years ago on the subject property was 2,408
square feet. He testified that with the Applicant’s revised plans, the FAR would be 3,073
square feet. He testified that this is an increase of just under 7%, or 6.96% and that the
ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS is authorized to grant up to a 15% increase in FAR.
He testified that the Applicant’s revised plans have a 13.29’ rear setback. He testified
that the unique problem with respect to the rear setback is the subject property’s short lot
depth. He testified that the Applicant was also requesting a reduction to its north side
setback. He testified that the north side setback of the subject property runs along
Dickens Avenue. He testified that ordinarily in a RM-4.5 zoning district, there would be
no side setback along Dickens Avenue. He testified, however, that because there is no
alley, the subject property is a reversed corner lot.* He testified that because the subject
property is a reversed corner lot, there is a side setback requirement along Dickens
Avenue. He testified that the existing home has a 0’ setback along Dickens. He testified
that, therefore, in order to build the proposed addition, the Applicant is asking the
ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS for relief with respect to the north side setback. He
testified that the subject property’s south side setback would remain .36°.

He testified that his office is located at 1017 W. Webster, which is relatively close to
the subject property. He testified that his office has been there for a while and he is
therefore familiar with the neighborhood. He testified that the requested variations would
not alter the essential character of the neighborhood. He testified that the requested
variations would not be injurious to other property. He testified that the requested
variations would not impair an adequate supply of light and air to adjacent properties, as
shown by the exhibits he previously submitted to the ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS.
He testified that the proposed variations will not increase the congestion in the public
streets as the trustees of the Applicant will continue to occupy the home as a single-
family home and as the home already has a garage. He testified that the proposed
variations will not increase fire or endanger the public safety.

Mr. Joseph M. Ryan testified in support of the Applicant’s applications.

- The ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS recognized Mr. Ryan as an expert in appraisal
but questioned why the Applicant had brought Mr. Ryan to testify as the Applicant was

not applying for a special use.

* Again, sce Section 17-17-02148 of the Chicago Zoning QOrdinance.



CAL. NOs. 490-18-Z & 491-18-2
Page 6 of 15

Mr. Kupiec stated that he felt Mr. Ryan was best qualified to testify to the variation
criteria with respect to the essential character of the neighborhood.

Mr. Ryan then testified that he did not believe the proposed variations would alter the
essential character of the neighborhood. He then submitted and the ZONING BOARD

OF APPEALS received into evidence a Mr. Ryan’s revised report.

In response to questions by the ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS, Mr. Ryan testified
to his revisions and confirmed that a standard City lot is 25’ wide by 125° deep. He
further testified that the proposed addition would not diminish any property value within
the neighborhood.

Ms. Patricia Coleman, of 2055 N. Howe Street, testified in opposition to the
Applicant’s applications.

The ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS granted Ms. Coleman leave to cross-examine
the Applicant’s witnesses.

In response to cross-examination by Ms. Coleman, Ms. Shannon further testified that
she realized the subject property was a narrow lot when the Applicant purchased the
subject property back in 2010. She testified that the home had slightly less than 3000
square feet. She testified that the first floor of the home was used for the children’s

playroom and a galley kitchen.

Ms. Coleman clarified that when she had previously asked Ms. Shannon questions
regarding the first floor, Ms. Coleman meant the basement level.

Based on this clarification, Ms. Shannon then testified that the basement had laundry
facilities, her home office (as Ms. Shannon worked from home three days a week), and a

mudroom.

In response to further cross-examination by Ms. Coleman, Ms. Shannon testified that
the home’s basement is set up with two rooms and then a Jack-and-Jill bathroom. She
testified that the family uses the rooms for a mudroom and her home office. She testified
there are also laundry facilities and a half-bathroom. She testified that she did not believe
it was appropriate for two young children to sleep in the basement. She testified that
during the week prior to the hearing, she was sitting in her office which faces Howe
Street and saw two policeman in her yard attempting to figure out what commotion had
happened in the neighborhood. She testified that she was not personally willing to let her
young children sleep there. She testified she did not believe it was appropriate to
reconfigure the basement space for the entire family to sleep in the basement. She
testified that she did not believe there was sufficient space within the home that a

bedroom could be reconfigured internally.

Ms. Coleman began a series of questions to Mr. Shannon with respect to the meeting
the Applicant had with the Association. In response to questions asked by the ZONING



CAL. NOs. 490-18-Z & 491-18-2
Page 7 of 15

BOARD OF APPEALS to Ms. Coleman, Ms. Coleman stated that prior to a variation
being granted, it was her understanding that an applicant had to appear before the

Association.

The ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS explained to Ms. Coleman that there was no
such requirement. It explained that an applicant did not need an alderman’s approval or a
community group’s approval to appear before the ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS as it
was the ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS -~ not an alderman and not a community group
— that rendered a final decision on any application for a variation.

In response to cross-examination by Ms. Coleman, Mr. Mayer testified that he did not
agree with Ms. Coleman’s characterization of her architect’s comments at the meeting

between the Association and the Applicant.

The ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS then stated that while it was only a quasi-
judicial body and therefore did not strictly follow either the Federal Rules of Evidence or
the Ilinois Rules of Evidence, it would have been helpful for Ms. Coleman to have
brought her architect to the hearing so that her architect could speak for himself and so
that ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS could ask questions of her architect.

In response to cross-examination by Ms. Coleman, Mr. Ryan testified that it did not
matter if the rear additions described in his report were the result of variations or not. He
testified that his report pointed out what conditions existed in the neighborhood currently.
He testified that it was his opinion that there were other rear additions in the
neighborhood that did, in fact, block sunlight and which had not, in his opinion,
diminished property values in the neighborhood.

In response to questions from the ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS on the issue of
self-created hardship, Mr. Kupiec stated the Applicant did not subdivide the subject
property. He stated that the home is old and he did not know why someone configured
this particular subdivision of five lots in the manner that he or she did. He stated that the
original subdivision had been done in the 1890s and for some reason, the original
subdivider had divided the lots to be 75° deep by 22’ wide. He stated that, similarly, the
Applicant did not build the home. He reminded the ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS
that there was not Chicago Zoning Ordinance in the 1890s and that, in consequence, it
did not matter at the time the home was built that the basement was more than half above

grade.

Ms. Coleman then submitted and the ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS accepted into
the record a document containing an outline of her talking points as well as certain
pictures.

Ms. Coleman testified that she resided in the middle row house (i.e., 2055 N. Howe
Street) in a set of three row houses (i.e., the Applicant’s home is the next row house
north). She testified that one of the reasons she purchased her row house was for its
many windows. She testified that her row house was the only row house out of three row



CAL. NOs. 498-18-Z & 491-18-Z
Page 8 of 15

houses that had a first floor patio and that she was an avid gardeper. She testified that if
the Applicant were to build the proposed addition, it was her belief that it would
significantly devalue her row house. She then testified that in June 1978, the ZONING
BOARD OF APPEALS denied an application with respect to the subject property, stating
that the proposed addition contemplated under said June 1978 application would alter the
essential character of the neighborhood in that it would affect the available light and air.
She testified that the then owner of the subject property returned to the ZONING
BOARD OF APPEALS in October 1978. She testified that the ZONING BOARD OF
APPEALS approved said October 1978 application but with very strict conditions, as the
ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS noted at that time, that the proposed addition would
significantly impact the row houses adjacent to the subject property.

The ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS stated, as it had when the Applicant had
entered into the record past decisions of the ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS, that it was
not a precedence setting body. It further stated that the ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS

was not bound by its past decisions.

In response to questions by the ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS on the subject of
light and air, Ms. Coleman testified that the Applicant’s proposed addition would
significantly block light to her row house. She then testified to the series of pictures she
had previously submitted into the record. She testified that said pictures showed side-by-
side comparisons of the views she currently had from various locations within her row
house and from her patio with the views she would have should the Applicant’s proposed

addition be built.

The ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS stated that given the ZONING BOARD OF
APPEALS understanding of how the sun rises and sets, it had a hard time determining
how the Applicant’s proposed addition would block Ms. Coleman’s light.

Ms. Coleman testified that she was not speaking of direct sunlight but rather natural
light. She testified that it was her belief that the Applicant’s proposed addition would
entomb her backyard. She then continued with her testimony with respect to the pictures.

She then asked a question with respect to the Applicant’s application for a variation to
increase the FAR.

Mr. Kupiec, Mr. Mayer, Ms. Coleman and the ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS then
erigaged in a long discussion in which the exact variation sought by the Applicant with
respect to the FAR was clarified to Ms. Coleman.®

5 Specifically, the Applicant applied for a variation pursuant to Section 17-13-1101-G of the Chicago
Zoning Ordinance which reads as follows: “The Zoning Board of Appeals is authorized to grant

a variation allowing any permitted nonresidential use in a residential district to exceed the floor area
ratio imposed by the applicable regulations, or to allow the expansion or enlargement of any permitted
residential use in an RS3, RT3.5, RT4, RM4.5, or RM35 district by an amount not to exceed 15% of the
floor area in existence 50 years before the date the variance application is fited.”



CAL. NOs. 490-18-Z & 491-18-Z
Page 2 of 15

Ms. Coleman then testified that she did not believe the addition authorized by the
variation granted by ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS back in October 1978 had been
built in accordance with the specifications of the ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS as
she believed there were several deviations from the conditions imposed by the ZONING

BOARD OF APPEALS.

Mr. Kupiec was then granted leave to: (1) cross-examine Ms. Coleman; and (2) recall
the Applicant’s witnesses in light of Ms. Coleman’s testimony.

In response to cross-examination by Mr. Kupiec, Ms. Coleman further testified that
she resided in her row house. She testified that at the rear of her row house, there is a
two-story frame addition. She testified that there is an open stair at the rear of the frame
addition. She testified that the two-story frame addition had been built before she

purchased her row house.

Mr. Kupiec then recalled Mr. Mayer. Mr. Mayer testified that he had previously
testified that it was his opinion that the Applicant’s proposed addition would not impair
an adequate supply of light and air to adjacent property. He testified that he still had such
opinion. He testified that the home on the subject property was to the north of Ms.
Coleman’s row house. He testified that, in consequence, Ms. Coleman’s row house was
south of the subject property. He testified that one usually found the sun on'the south
side. He testified that with respect to buildings impairing Ms. Coleman’s sunlight, those
buildings that would most likely impair Ms. Coleman’s sunlight would be those buildings
to the south of Ms. Coleman’s row house. He testified that in the pictures provided by
the Applicant to the ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS, one could see the shadows
created by the buildings to the south. He testified that the Applicant’s proposed addition
could not create shadows on Ms. Coleman’s row house because the subject property was
to the north of Ms. Coleman and the sun was to the south. He testified that he therefore
disagreed with any comments made by Ms. Coleman with respect to the Applicant’s
proposed addition casting shadows on Ms. Coleman’s property. He then testified that
because the Applicant’s proposed addition was to the north of Ms. Coleman’s row house,
the proposed addition could not block any sunlight. Instead, he testified that the proposed
addition could only reflect light in as the sun is in the south and eastern sky as well as a
bit of the western sky. He testified that it would not subtract any sunlight and therefore

would not impair an adequate supply of light and air.

Mr. Mayer further testified that he had had an opportunity to inspect the rear of Ms.
Coleman’s row house. He testified that he had also looked at an old Sanborn Fire
Insurance Map and it showed that at one time there was only a one-story rear addition to
Ms. Coleman’s row-house. He testified that currently there is a two-story frame rear
addition to Ms. Coleman’s row-house and an open stairway beyond said addition. He
testified that at the meeting between the Applicant and the Association, he had an
opportunity to see a survey of Ms. Coleman’s property. He testified that based on what
he reviewed, he believed that Ms. Coleman’s required rear sethack to be similar to the
20.89’ rear required setback of the subject property. He testified that it appeared that the
two-story frame addition to Ms. Coleman’s row-house encroached into the required rear



CAL. NOs. 490-18-Z & 491-18-2
Page 10 of 15

setback. He testified that he therefore believed that some zoning relief in the nature of a
variation or an administrative adjustment would have been required to construct the two-
story rear frame addition to Ms. Coleman’s row-house.

Mr. Kupiec stated that Mr. Mayer’s testimony showed that the Applicant’s requested
variations would not alter the essential character of the neighborhood as rear additions
were very common, as evidenced by Ms. Coleman’s rear addition.

Mr. Mayer then testified that with respect to the 1978 resolution by the ZONING
BOARD OF APPEALS, he had not located the exact building permit that allowed the
addition authorized by the variation to be constructed. However, he testified that said
building permit had to have existed as the subject property had been issued several

building permits subsequent to 1978.
Mr. Kupiec then made a closing argument.
Ms. Coleman then made a closing argument,

B. Criteria for a Variation

Pursuant to Section 17-13-1107-A of the Chicago Zoning Ordinance, no variation
application may be approved unless the ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS finds, based
upon the evidence presented to it in each specific case, that: (1) strict compliance with the
standards of the Chicago Zoning Ordinance would create practical difficulties or
particular hardships; and (2) the requested variation is consistent with the stated purpose
and intent of the Chicago Zoning Ordinance.

Pursuant to Section 17-13-1107-B of the Chicago Zoning Ordinance, in order to
determine that practical difficulties or particular hardships exist, the ZONING BOARD
OF APPEALS must find evidence of each of the following: (1) the property in question
cannot yield a reasonable return if permitted to be used only in accordance with the
standards of the Chicago Zoning Ordinance; (2) the practical difficulties or particular
hardships are due to unique circumstances and are not generally applicable to other
similarly situated property; and (3) the variation, if granted, will not alter the essential

character of the neighborhood.

Pursuant to Section 17-13-1107-C of the Chicago Zoning Ordinance, in making its
determination of whether practical difficulties or particular hardships exist, the ZONING
BOARD OF APPEALS must take into consideration the éxtent to which evidence has
been submitted substantiating the following facts: (1) the particular physical
surroundings, shape or topographical condition of the specific property involved would
result in a particular hardship upon the property owner as distinguished from a mere
inconvenience, if the strict letter of the regulations were carried out; (2) the conditions
upon which the petition for a variation is based would not be applicable, generally, to
other property within the same zoning classification; (3) the purpose of the variation is
not based exclusively upon a desire to make more money out of the property; (4) the



CAL. NOs. 490-18-Z & 491-18-Z
Page 11 of 15

alleged practical difficulty or particular hardship has not been created by any person
presently having an interest in the property; (5) the granting of the variation will not be
detrimental to the public welfare or injurious to other property or improvements in the
neighborheod in which the property is located; and (6) the proposed variation will not
mmpair an adequate supply of light and air to adjacent property, or substantially increase
the congestion in the public streets, or increase the danger of fire, or endanger the public -
safety, or substantially diminish or impair property values within the neighborhood.

II.  FINDINGS OF FACT.

Afier carefurl consideration of the evidence, testimony and the entire record, including
the Applicant’s proposed Findings of Fact, the ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS hereby
makes the following findings with reference to the Applicant’s applications for variations
pursuant to Section 17-13-1107-A of the Chicago Zoning Ordinance:

1. Strict compliance with the regulations and standards of the Chicago Zoning
Ordinance would create practical difficulties or particular hardships for the

subject property.

The subject property is only 75° deep by 22° wide. This is in contrast to a
standard City lot of 125” deep by 25° wide. The subject property is therefore a
short and narrow lot. The subject property is zoned RM-4.5. Ordinarily,
properties in RM-4.5 zoning districts are not subject to side setback requirements
when their side lot line abuts an alley or street. However, because the subject
property is a reversed corner lot, its side lot line (which abuts Dickens Avenue) is
subject to side setback requirements.® The subject property is currently improved
with a 1890s home and a garage. Said garage limits where an addition can be
located. Said 1890s home has a basement that is more than half above grade.
Consequently, the home’s basement counts against the subject property’s FAR.
Further, the home itself is currently nonconforming with respect to the rear and
north side setbacks. Based on all of the above, strict compliance with the
regulations and standards of the Chicago Zoning Ordinance would create practical
difficulties for the subject property as building any addition would be impossible
without the requested variations.

2. The requested variations are consistent with the stated purpose and intent of the
Chicago Zoning Ordinance.

The requested variations promote the rehabilitation and reuse of older buildings as
set forth in Section 17-1-0511 of the Chicago Zoning Ordinance. The requested
variations maintain a range of housing choices and options pursuant to Section
17-1-0512 of the Chicago Zoning Ordinance. Further, the requested variations
protect the character of the established residential neighborhood as set forth in
Section 17-1-0503 of the Chicago Zoning Ordinance.

& Cf. Note 1 of Section 17-2-309-A of the Chicago Zoning Ordinance with Section 17-2-309-B of the
Chicago Zoning Ordinance.



CAL. NOs. 490-18-Z & 491-18-Z
Page 12 of 15

After careful consideration of the evidence, testimony and the entire record,

including the Applicant’s proposed Findings of Fact, the ZONING BOARD OF
APPEALS hereby makes the following findings with reference to the Applicant’s
applications for variations pursuant to Section 17-13-1107-B of the Chicago Zoning

Ordinance:

1.

The property in question cannot yield a reasonable return if permitted lo be used
only in accordance with the standards of the Chicago Zoning Ordinance.

Since the Applicant will continue to own and the Applicant’s trustees will
continue to reside at the home on the subject property, the ZONING BOARD OF
APPEALS finds that reasonable return in this instance in terms of the subject
property’s livability. Ms. Shannon very credibly testified that the current
configuration of the home does not work for her family in that there is currently
no practical way to reconﬁgure the internal space of the home so that Mr. and Ms.
Shannon can have a bedroom on the same level as their young children. The
requested variations will allow the Applicant to build a modest 167 square foot
addition to the home’s second floor. The addition will allow Mr. and Ms.
Shannon’s two young children to have a bedroom that is on the same level as Mr.
and Ms. Shannon’s bedroom. Without the requested variations, the Applicant
could not build said addition as the subject property. First, due to the above grade
basernent, is already over its FAR. Second, due to: (a) the existence of the
garage; and (b) the fact the existing home is currently noncompliant with respect
to the north side and rear yard setback, any proposed second floor addition would
need a variation to reduce both setbacks. Therefore, without the requested
variations, the house remains unworkable for the Applicant’s trustees and thus the
subject property is unable to realize a reasonable rate of return.

The practical difficulties or particular hardships are due to unique circumstances
and are not generally applicable to other similarly situated property.

The practical difficulties necessitating the variations are due to the short lot depth
of the subject property, the narrow lot width of the subject property, the existing
improvements {e.g., the nonconforming home and garage) on the subject property
and the fact that the subject property is a reversed corner lot. All of these
conditions are unique circumstances that are not generally applicable to other
residential property. '

The variations, if granted, will not alter the essential character of the
neighborhood.



CAL. NOs. 490-18-Z & 491-18-Z
Page 13 of 15

The variations, if granted, will allow the Applicant to construct a modest 167
square foot addition to the home’s second floor. Mr. Shannon very credibly
testified to the existence of other rear yard additions in the neighborhood. In fact,
as testified to by both Mr. Mayer and Ms. Coleman, the property next south (e.g.,
Ms. Coleman’s row house) has a two-story rear frame addition. Moreover, as
shown by the Applicant’s plat of survey and site plans, the home on the subject
property is already built in the subject property’s rear and north side setbacks.
The ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS notes that proposed addition will be built
along the home’s north side building wall but will not extend as far as the rear
building wali of the home. As perhaps best shown by the Applicant’s model, the
variations, if granted, will not alter the essential character of the neighborhood.

After careful consideration of the evidence, testimony and the entire record, including -
the Applicant’s proposed Findings of Fact, the ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS hereby
makes the following findings with reference to the Applicant’s applications for variations
pursuant to Section 17-13-1107-C of the Chicago Zoning Ordinance:

1.

The particular physical surroundings, shape or topographical condition of the
specific property involved would result in a particular hardship upon the property
owner as distinguished from a mere inconvenience, if the strict letter of the

regulations were carried out.

As noted above, the subject property has a short lot depth, has a narrow lot width,
is a reversed corner lot and is improved with a home that currently does not
conform to either the subject property’s rear or north side setback or the subject
property’s allowable FAR. There is also the existence of the garage. All of these
conditions make it impossible for the Applicant to build an addition without the
requested variations. Therefore, the particular shape and topographical condition
of the subject property resuits in particular hardship upon the Applicant as
distinguished from mere inconvenience, if the strict letter of the regulations were

carried out.

The conditions upon which the petition for the variations are based would not be
applicable, generally, to other property within the same zoning classification.

The subject property’s short lot depth, narrow lot width, status as a reversed
corner lot, garage and nonconforming home are conditions not applicable,
generally, to other property within the RM-4.5 zoning classification.

The purpose of the variations is not based exclusively upon a desire to make more
money out of the property.

The purpose of these variations is to allow the Applicant to build a modest 167
square foot addition to the second floor of the home. The addition will allow the



CAL. NOs. 490-18-Z & 491-18-£
Page 14 of 15

Applicant’s trustees to provide a bedroom for their young children. Therefore, the
purpose of the variations is not based exclusively upon a desire to make more
money out of the subject property. Instead, as Ms, Shannon very credibly
testified, the purpose of the variations is to allow the home to be workable for the

family.

The alleged practical difficulty or pamcular hardship has not been created by
any person presently having an interest in ‘the property.

The nonconforming home on the subject property dates from the 1890s and was
therefore not built by the Applicant or the Applicant’s trustees. Neither the
Applicant nor the Applicant’s trustees created the short lot depth or the narrow lot
width of the subject property. Further, neither the Applicant nor the Applicant’s
trustees created the condition of the reversed corner lot.

The granting of the variations will not be detrimental to the public welfare or
infurious to other property or improvements in the neighborhood in which the

property is located.

As noted above, the granting of the variations will allow the Applicant to build a
modest 167 square foot addition to the second floor of the home. The proposed
addition — as shown by Mr. Mayer’s model and photographs — will be not be
detrimental to the public welfare or injurious to other property or improvements in
* the area. The ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS found Mr. Mayer to be a very
credible witness. Therefore, the granting of the variations will not be detrimental
to the public welfare or injurious to other property or improvements in the
neighborhood in which the subject property is located.

The variations will not impair an adequate supply of light and air to adjacent
property, or substantially increase the congestion in the public streets, or
increase the danger of fire, or endanger the public safety, or substantially
diminish or impair property values within the neighborhood.

Granting the variations will not impair an adequate supply of light and air to
adjacent properties. As noted above, the variations will allow the Applicant to
build a modest 167 square foot addition to the second floor of the home. The
proposed addition — as shown by Mr. Mayer’s models and photographs and as
very credibly testified to by Mr. Mayer — will not impair an adequate supply of
light and air to adjacent property. The variations will not substantially increase
congestion in the public streets as the home will continue to be a single-family
home and will continue to have an on-site garage. Since the proposed addition
will be brick and will be built to all building and fire codes, granting the
variations will not increase the danger of fire or endanger the public safety.



CAL. NOs._ 490-18-Z & 491-18-Z
Page 15 of 15

Further, and as Mr. Ryan very credibly testified, the proposed addition will not
impair property values in the neighborhood.

IV.  CONCLUSION

For all of these reasons, the ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS finds that the
Applicant has proved its case by evidence, testimony and the entire record, including the
Applicant’s proposed Findings of Fact, covering the specific criteria for a variation
pursuant to Sections 17-13-1107-A, B and C of the Chicago Zoning Ordinance.

The ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS hereby approves the Applicant’s applications
for variations, and the Zoning Administrator is hereby authorized to permit said

variations.

This is a final decision subject to review under the Illinois Administrative Review
Law (735 ILCS 5/3-101 et. seq.).



AARTLRELAAE AFRFLOAANLY AFR LA & ATy AR BB AR AR URRT ATy WA Rk R ARSIy ANLIRALYE AULT

APPLICANT: Sojo’s Studios 2 Inc. CAL NO.: 501-18-8
-4 PPEARANCE FOR: Thomas Raines MINUTES OF MEETING:
) October 19, 2018
APPEARANCE AGAINST: Nene
PREMISES AFFECTED: 9521-27 S. Western Avenue

NATURE OF REQUEST: Application for a special use to establish a hair and nail salon.

ACTION OF BOARD-
APPLICATION APPROVED
THE VOTE
HEC E gVED AFFIRMATIVE NEGATIVE ABSENT
BLAKE SERCYE X
NOY 1 9208 SHAINA DOAR X
CITY OF GHHCAGU SOL FLORES X
ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS SAM TOIA X
AMANDA WILLIAMS X
THE RESOLUTION:

WHEREAS, a public hearing was held on this application by the Zoning Board of Appeals at its regular meeting held
on October 19, 2018 after due notice thereof as provided under Section 17-13-0107B and by publication in the Chicago Sun-

Times on October 5, 2018; and

)
WHEREAS, the Zoning Board of Appeals, having reviewed the proposed finding of fact and having fully heard the

testimony and arguments of the parties and being fully advised in the premises, hereby finds the following; the applicant
shall be permitted to establish a hair and nail salon; expert testimony was offered that the use would not have a negative
impact on the surrounding community and is in character with the neighborhood; further expert testimony was offered that
the use complies with all of the criteria as set forth by the code for the granting of a special use at the subject site; the Board
finds the use complies with all applicable standards of this Zoning Ordinance; is in the interest of the public convenience and
will not have a significant adverse impact on the general welfare of neighborhood or community; is compatible with the
character of the surrounding area in terms of site plananing and building scale and project design; is compatible with the
character of the surrounding area in terms of operating characteristics, such as hours of operation, outdoor lighting, noise, and
traffic generation; and is designed to promote pedestrian safety and comfort; it is therefore

RESOLVED, that the aforesaid special use request be and it hereby is approved and the Zoning Administrator is
authorized to permit said special use subject to the following condition(s): provided the special use is issued solely to the

applicant, Sojo’s Studios 2, Inc.

That all applicable ordinances of the City of Chicago shall be complied with before a permit is issued.

| Page 66 of 67 e
| =T CHATRMAN




Al e TAEL Y WS AFAWSLRARAAS WA LASR & &AL BAAEA Bl s AR AAERETEIARRS T A A AR ORALARARTT BRRY Rt oo

APPLICANT: Armand & Sons, LLC CAL NO.: 514-18-8

- APPEARANCE FOR: Thomas Moore MINUTES OF MEETING:
October 19, 2018
APPEARANCE AGAINST: None
PREMISES AFFECTED: 5820 N. Clark Street

NATURE OF REQUEST: Application for a special use to establish a hair salon.

ACTION OF BOARD-
APPLICATION APPROVED
THE VOTE
RECEIVED S s o anomn
BLAKE SERCYE X
MOV 1 92018 SHAINA DOAR X
SOL FLORES y
CATY OF CHICAGO
FONING BOARD OF APPEALS SAM TOIA »
AMANDA WILLIAMS X

THE RESOLUTION:

WHEREAS, a public hearing was held on this application by the Zoning Board of Appeals at its regular meeting held
on October 19, 2018 after due notice thereof as provided under Section 17-13-0107B and by publication in the Chicago Sun-

Times on October 5, 2018; and

WHEREAS, the Zoning Board of Appeals, having reviewed the proposed finding of fact and having fully heard the
testimony and arguments of the parties and being fully advised in the premises, hereby finds the following; the applicant
shall be permitted to establish a hair salon; expett testimony was offered that the use would not have a negative impact on the
surrounding community and is in character with the neighborhood; further expert testimony was offered that the use complies
with all of the criteria as set forth by the code for the granting of a special use at the subject site; the Board finds the use
complies with all applicable standards of this Zoning Ordinance; is in the interest of the public convenience and will not have
a significant adverse impact on the general welfare of neighborhood or community; is compatible with the character of the
surrounding area in terms of site planning and building scale and project design; is compatible with the character of the
surrounding area in terms of operating characteristics, such as hours of operation, outdoor lighting, noise, and traffic
generation; and is designed to promote pedestrian safety and comfort; it is therefore

RESOLVED, that the aforesaid special use request be and it hereby is approved and the Zoning Administrator is
authorized to permit said special use subject to the following condition(s): provided the special use is issued solely to the

applicant, Armand & Sons, LLC.

That all applicable ordinances of the City of Chicago shall be complied with before a permit is issued.

) Page 67 of 67 _
A - CHAIRMAN




